1		Riv	er Heights City Council		
2		Ν	linutes of the Meeting		
3			February 10, 2015		
4					
5					
6	Present were:	Mayor	James Brackner		
7		Council members:	Doug Clausen		
8			Richard Okelberry		
9			Geoff Smith		
10			Dixie Wilson		
11					
12		Recorder	Sheila Lind		
13		Public Works Director	Clayten Nelson		
14		Finance Director	Clifford Grover		
15		Treasurer	Wendy Wilker		
16					
17	Excused	Councilmember	Blake Wright		
18					
19	Others Present:		Engineer Craig Rasmussen, Bracken Atkinson, Brent		
20			Skinner, Todd Rasmussen		
21					
22					
23		The following me	otions were made during the meeting:		
24		-			
25	Motion #1				
26	Cound	cilmember Clausen moved t	to "adopt the minutes of the January 27, 2015 Council		
27	Meeting, and	the evening's agenda." Cou	incilmember Okelberry seconded the motion, which passed		
28	with Clausen,	Okelberry, Smith and Wils	on in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
29		-			
30	Motion #2				
31	Counc	ilmember Clausen moved to	o "pay the bills as listed, except to hold the payment to Les		
32	Olsen." Coun	cilmember Wilson seconde	d the motion, which passed with Clausen, Okelberry, Smith		
33	and Wilson in	favor. No one opposed. W	right was absent.		
34					
35	Motion #3				
36	Counc	ilmember Clausen moved to	o "adopt Resolution 1-2015, A Resolution Amending the		
37	2014-15 General Budget." Councilmember Okelberry seconded the motion, which passed with				
38		-	favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
39		•			
40	Motion #4				
41	Counc	ilmember Clausen moved to	o "adopt Resolution 2-2015, A Resolution Adopting		
42	Purchasing and Expenditures for River Heights City, with the new wording in paragraph three: 'unless				
43	-	-	sole source." Councilmember Okelberry seconded the		
44			berry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright		
45	was absent.				
46					

47	Motion #5		
48	Councilmember Clausen moved to "approve the two purchase requests discussed."		
49	Councilmember Smith seconded the motion, which passed with Clausen, Okelberry, Smith and Wilson		
50	in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
51			
52	Motion #6		
53	Councilmember Clausen moved to "approve the preliminary layout and design for Conservice,		
54	by the Wasatch Development Group, with the conditions specified by the Planning Commission and		
55	that the parking area, with solar power, be reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission."		
56	Councilmember Smith seconded the motion, which passed with Clausen, Okelberry and Smith in		
57	favor. Wilson opposed. Wright was absent.		
58			
59	Motion #7		
60	Councilmember Wilson moved that "the city apply for RAPZ grant money to demolish the Old		
61	Church and put grass in." Councilmember Okelberry seconded, which passed with Clausen,		
62	Okelberry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
63			
64			
65	Proceedings of the Meeting:		
66			
67	The River Heights City Council met at 6:30 p.m. in the Ervin R. Crosbie Council Chambers in		
68	the River Heights City Building on Tuesday, February 10, 2015.		
69	<u>Opening Remarks and Pledge of Allegiance:</u> Councilmember Okelberry opened the meeting		
70	with a quote by Adam Smith. Mayor Brackner led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.		
71	Youth Council Report: Councilmember Smith asked for this item to be put on a future agenda.		
72	Adoption of Previous Minutes and Agenda: Minutes of the January 27, 2015 Council Meeting,		
73	were reviewed.		
74	Councilmember Clausen moved to "adopt the minutes of the January 27, 2015 Council		
75	Meeting, and the evening's agenda." Council member Okelberry seconded the motion, which		
76	passed with Clausen, Okelberry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was		
77	absent.		
78	Pay Bills: The bills were presented and discussed. Mayor Brackner said the Petersen Plumbing		
79	bill exceeded the \$1,000 approval limit because there were a number of smaller things they needed to		
80	go along with the associated water break on 500 South 500 East.		
81	Councilmember Okelberry was surprised to see the Docuware software on the list of bills to be		
82	paid. He informed of some recent state mandates he's become aware of. It sounds like the state wants		
83	to be the central hub for storage. He believes the state is advising cities not to use these kinds of		
84	systems because of difficulty in transferring documents onto the states storage site. Utah Open Data		
85	Catalog is a place that other cities are using for their storage. He doesn't think they will require full		
86	compliance until 5 years. FD Grover would like to see the guidelines from the state. Mr. Okelberry		
87	suggested getting a hold of Drew Mingle at <u>dmingle@utah.gov</u> to find out more details. He also		
88	suggested discussing it with Les Olsen.		
89	Councilmember Clausen moved to "pay the bills as listed, except to hold the payment to		
90	Les Olsen." Councilmember Wilson seconded the motion, which passed with Clausen,		
91	Okelberry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		

92	Finance Director Report: FD Grover drew attention to a change in the allocations on the		
93	Combined Cash Investment Report. Rather than the general fund showing a negative, it now reflects a		
94	positive. This change is due to moving the capital improvement expenses into the capital projects		
95	fund, rather than pulling them from the general fund. Capital projects that have a useful life longer		
96	than a year should pull from the capital projects fund. Mr. Grover also discussed the current financial		
97	statements as of Jan 31 (assuming the amendments to the budget will be approved).		
98	Public Works Report and Discussion: PWD Nelson reported on the following:		
99	• He has finished up the annual reports and turned them in. He received the yearly letter from		
100	the State, informing that certain sampling hasn't been received. He has called them to try to		
101	straighten it out, since it has been done this year, as well as every other year.		
102	• They will start work on sewer inspections, which typically takes a couple weeks.		
103	Administrative Report: Recorder Lind asked that \$200 be put in the budget this year for		
104	elections. The election process is starting earlier than it used to. She also informed that Annette Smith		
105	hopes the city takes pictures of the Old Church before it's torn down. Mayor Brackner felt some parts		
106	of the building could be sold and the money used to help fund the razing. Engineer Rasmussen said in		
107	Hyrum, they found there was a big interest in parts of a building that was taken down.		
108	Public Comment: There was none.		
109	Public Hearing to Discuss and Adopt a Resolution Amending the 2014-15 General Budget:		
110	Mayor Brackner discussed the summary of the actual adjustments. He recommended adding the		
111	election cost to the final budget amendments, done in May.		
112	Councilmember Clausen moved to "adopt Resolution 1-2015, A Resolution Amending the		
113	2014-15 General Budget." Councilmember Okelberry seconded the motion, which passed with		
114	Clausen, Okelberry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
115	Discuss and Approve a Resolution Adopting Purchasing and Expenditures for River Heights		
116	<u>City:</u> Mayor Brackner explained the recommended change to the resolution.		
117	Councilmember Clausen moved to "adopt Resolution 2-2015, A Resolution Adopting		
118	Purchasing and Expenditures for River Heights City, with the new wording in paragraph three:		
119	'unless the provider of the product or service is a sole source.'" Councilmember Okelberry		
120 121	seconded the motion, which passed with Clausen, Okelberry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
121	Purchase Requisition: PWD Nelson requested permission to pay two purchase requisitions.		
122	1. Intermountain Environment Inc., in the amount of \$16,010.31 for the wells and reservoir		
123	telemetry upgrade.		
124	2. Century Equipment, in the amount of \$4,600 for the yearly case skid loader lease. This will be		
125	paid for in the next fiscal year.		
120	Councilmember Clausen moved to "approve the two purchase requests discussed."		
128	Councilmember Smith seconded the motion, which passed with Clausen, Okelberry, Smith and		
129	Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.		
130	PWD Nelson reminded that the Docuware system would require a purchase requisition, when it		
131	gets approved.		
132	Treasurer Wilker and FD Grover took leave of the meeting.		
133	Discuss/Approve Preliminary Layout and Design for Conservice by Wasatch Development		
134	Group: Engineer Rasmussen explained the procedure for approving this development. The Planning		
135	Commission is the architectural review board. They have discussed and revised the plans and now feel		
136	the concept can be forwarded to the Council at this time. Mayor Brackner read the motion, made by		
137	the Planning Commission. He informed the Council that Engineer Rasmussen has kept a close eye on		

the details of the project. He also reported that he, Councilmember Wilson and Councilmember Smithwent to look at the property today and had a few questions.

Bracken Atkinson explained the additional solar panels (attached to covered parking) they are requesting, since their meeting with the Commission.

Engineer Rasmussen explained a few areas in which the Commission wanted to deviate from the ordinance. He said Conservice would like to offset 50% of their potential power usage by using solar power, which would require them to cut back on the amount of trees the ordinance requires. Bracken Atkinson stated the look of the solar panels are very important to them, as it flows with the landscaping. The Planning Commission hasn't seen the new plan yet, but Mr. Rasmussen feels they

147 will approve it.

148 Councilmember Wilson asked how they are going to make up for the slope. Bracken Atkinson 149 explained how they will dig out for the parking lot and how they'll build a retaining wall.

Councilmember Okelberry wondered if the neighbors would prefer them to have trees. If so, could they request them? Brent Skinner said the trees are required by city ordinance, not by the neighbors. Engineer Rasmussen explained the internal parking lot area and the south side of 800 South are the areas where the Commission has given leeway on the number of trees. They are also going to cut back on the trees along the curve of 100 East.

155 Discussion was held on the present drain line, which will be underneath the building. Brent 156 Skinner explained how they plan to capture the water earlier so they can abandon this line.

Councilmember Wilson asked how they will handle the irrigation water. She was told they
 plan to utilize their own shares. Bracken Atkinson said they shouldn't have to worry about other
 people's run off, however, they are planning to take care of the tail water so it doesn't negatively affect
 them.

161 Councilmember Okelberry asked if they are aware of anything in the state code that requires 162 municipalities to allow renewable energies. Engineer Rasmussen said he isn't aware of a law of this 163 nature. Bracken Atkinson said they are concerned with following the city's rules as well as producing 164 an esthetically pleasing project.

165 Councilmember Wilson asked for more clarification on the roof height. She understood 166 nothing would be higher than 3 feet above the roof line. Engineer Rasmussen explained the code and 167 its allowance of certain things, such as the maintenance housing and stairway, which will be screened.

Engineer Rasmussen stated the city is in the process of drafting a new lighting ordinance.
 Conservice is following the draft, since they are going to be using LED lighting.

Councilmember Okelberry asked about the height of the lights. Engineer Rasmussen said the
 standard is 25 feet.

172 Councilmember Smith asked about the grading and how they will cut in for the building.173 Engineer Rasmussen explained how it would be done.

174 Councilmember Smith asked if Engineer Rasmussen was comfortable with this design. Mr. 175 Rasmussen said he would have liked to hear more from the Commission on the building colors, etc., 176 although he feels it looks good. They did give input on lighting and landscaping. He recommended 177 the revised parking lot plan go back to the Planning Commission for their approval. This is the only 178 item that has changed, in respect to the layout.

Councilmember Wilson asked about the windows. Brent Skinner said they will be tinted. She
would like non-glare glass. Mr. Skinner said they will use the typical windows. He's not sure they
make windows that don't reflect the sun.

182 Engineer Rasmussen stated that once the Council approves the plan, the developer will start on 183 the construction drawings, which will go through reviews with him. 184 Councilmember Clausen moved to "approve the preliminary layout and design for

185 Conservice, by the Wasatch Development Group, with the conditions specified by the Planning

186 Commission and that the parking area, with solar power, be reviewed and approved by the

Planning Commission." Councilmember Smith seconded the motion, which passed with
 Clausen, Okelberry and Smith in favor. Wilson opposed. Wright was absent.

Mayor Brackner asked the Conservice gentlemen if they have thought about the amount of traffic this project will put onto 100 East. He asked if they would consider participating with the city on extending 800 South all the way through, to the east. Bracken Atkinson said it would depend on the definition of 'participate.' Councilmember Okelberry suggested Mayor Brackner work with them outside of this meeting. Mr. Atkinson said this is something the property owner would need to negotiate.

195 Councilmember Smith asked their timeline. They explained they are hoping to get started in 196 May of 2015 and occupy in August of 2016.

197 Brent Skinner and Bracken Atkinson took leave of the meeting.

Mayor Brackner discussed the \$2.00 raise the Council approved for Cameron Reed. He recommended raising his pay by \$1.00 now. After he gets his certification then he'll get the additional \$1.00 raise.

Discuss Disposition of Old Church: Councilmember Wilson asked Councilmember Smith what he decided about taking down the Old Church. Mr. Smith said he thought about it and would be supportive. He's not sure the property should become a park. Ms. Wilson stated, if they aren't going to have it be a park, then they shouldn't apply for RAPZ tax to help fund the razing. Councilmember Okelberry feels the city has a deficit of parks. Ideas were discussed on what could be done with the property. Ms. Wilson said she doesn't care if the building comes down this year, but if it does, she needs to apply for RAPZ by the first of March.

Councilmember Okelberry asked how the other council members ranked this project. Councilmember Clausen said he would change his ranking if the city had to fund the full project. Mr. Okelberry feels they should be committed before they apply. Councilmember Wilson said they shouldn't rush into deciding. PWD Nelson pointed out that it would be next year before any demolition took place because of the RAPZ timeline and needing to give the renters 180 days to vacate.

Mayor Brackner asked the Council if they would support this, if they can get a good amount of RAPZ funding. Councilmember Wilson said if RAPZ is awarded they will have 18 months to spend the money. PWD Nelson suggested talking to the tenants, concerning the intentions of the city so they would have time to find another place and move out. Engineer Rasmussen offered his services on helping with the grant application.

Councilmember Wilson moved that "the city apply for RAPZ grant money to demolish
 the Old Church and put grass in." Councilmember Okelberry seconded, which passed with
 Clausen, Okelberry, Smith and Wilson in favor. No one opposed. Wright was absent.

- 222 <u>Mayor and Council Reports:</u> Mayor Brackner will send Michael Ballam a letter, letting him 223 know of the city's intentions for the Old Church building.
- Councilmember Smith introduced Todd Rasmussen, the Youth Council advisor. He will get the youth (Tanner Burt and Kelcie Thunell) to come to the next council meeting to report their visit to the state legislature.

Councilmember Smith said Apple Days will be the 22 or 29 of August. The Council didn't see a problem with either date. Mr. Smith and the committee will choose the date.

229	Mayor Brackner explained the attorney fee for the wastewater issue. The cost so far is \$114.		
230	There will probably be another bill later.		
231	Councilmember Okelberry discussed sidewalks. He has heard the federal government is going		
232	after cities for not having ADA sidewalks. He recommends getting a plan in place. Mayor Brackner		
233	asked PWD Nelson to draw up a draft of a city sidewalk plan.		
234	Discuss and Prioritize a Capital Facilities Plan: Mayor Brackner discussed the list of potential		
235	projects, their costs and his top priorities.		
236	Councilmember Wright arrived at the meeting.		
237	Mayor Brackner asked each council member to turn in a priority list to him. He will combine		
238	them into one list the city can use, when budgeting in the coming year, and the years to come.		
239	Councilmember Wright asked if there are projects that are known priorities. Mayor Brackner		
240	explained the following projects that need to be done sooner than later: Sealing streets, Saddle Rock		
241	street lights, 100 East fire hydrant and the 700 South water line loop.		
242	Councilmember Wright reported that he and Attorney Jenkins met with the property owners of		
243	Johnson's to discuss the city's interest in straightening out the property line on the brow of the hill.		
244	Johnsons aren't saying much yet. The city should probably propose where the line would be and then		
245			
246	to the council. He hopes to have a cost figure in May so it can be included in next year's budget. He		
247	will also work on a potential property layout of the area.		
248	Councilmember Clausen asked if this property could incur some expenses next year.		
249	Councilmember Wright said possibly; he'd rather use the money to acquire the land than to spend it on		
250	improvements, at this point.		
251	The meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m.		
252			
253			
254			
255	Sheila Lind, Recorder		
256			
257	James Brackner, Mayor		